
 

 1 

Borough of TenaflyBorough of TenaflyBorough of TenaflyBorough of Tenafly 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY, MARCH 8, 2011 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Peter Rustin and Council members Anthony Barzelatto, 
Barry Honig, Martha Kerge, Nadia LaMastra, and Jon Warms 

 
ABSENT:       Councilman Lattif 
 

  ALSO  
  PRESENT:   Borough Administrator Jewel Thompson-Chin 

Borough Attorney William R. McClure 
 

At 8:10 p.m. Mayor Rustin read the Open Public Meetings Act Statement: “In compliance with 
the Open Public Meetings Act P.L. 1975, chapter 231, the notice requirements have been 
satisfied. Meeting dates for the year are listed in the Annual Agenda; copies are sent to the Press 
Journal, Record, Suburbanite, Northern Valley News and posted on the bulletin board in the 
lobby of the Municipal Center.” 
 
The Salute to the Flag was led by Mayor Peter Rustin. 
 
Motion by C. Kerge, second by C. Barzelatto and unanimously carried, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Work Session of January 4, 2011 and Public Meeting 
of January 11, 2011 are hereby approved. 
 
REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA – Mr. McClure advised that Resolutions #R11-123 to appoint 
the Labor Counsel would be added under New Business.  
 
Mayor Rustin advised the audience that this meeting was being recorded and the Council has no 
control over where the recording would be placed. 
 
AUDIENCE REMARKS FOR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
None.  
 
OATH OF OFFICE FOR CAPTAIN ROBERT CHAMBERLAIN & CAPTAIN JOHN 
TRAINOR 
 
Captain Robert Chamberlain and Captain John Trainor were sworn into office by Borough 
Attorney McClure.  
 
Mayor Rustin commented that the members of the Chamberlain and Trainor families should be 
very proud. He remarked that he was a part of the Police Commission interviews and was very 
proud of the process. He expressed his opinion that all nine candidates were tremendous and it is 
wonderful to know that the department is filled with such qualified men. 
 
C. Barzelatto stated that as part of the Police Commission, it was his honor to help in the process 
and believes that the Council should be proud in their choice of these two individuals. He stated 
that he is looking forward to working with both Captain Chamberlain and Trainor and wished 
them luck in their new positions. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. #R11-110/Approve March Expenditures as of March 2, 2011 
 B. #R11-111Approve Refund/Tree Mitigation Escrow/156 Elm Street/$150.00 
 C. #R11-112/Approve Refund/Knickerbocker Country Club/All Escrow Accounts 
 D. #R11-113/Authorize Cancellation of Stale Dated Checks 
 E. #R11-114/Authorize Auditing Services for 2011 Introduced and Adopted Budget 
 F. #R11-115/Designate Month of March as “Women’s History Month” 
 G. #R11-116/Approve Refunds – Tax Court Judgments for 2009 & 2010 



 

 2 

 H. #R11-117/Approve Tax Overpayment Refund 
 I. #R11-118/Authorize 2010 Appropriation Reserve Transfers  
 J. #R11-119/Amend #R11-41/Add Budget Meeting on Tuesday, March 15, 2011 to 2011  
  Meeting Schedule 
 K. #R11-120/Amend #R11-97/Approve Refund/PB#1-10-20/Trust Account/  
  Knickerbocker Country Club/$501.32 
 L. #R11-121/Amend #R11-98/Approve Refund/PB#1-10-21/Trust Account/  
  Joseph J. Gartner, M.D./$602.23 
  
Motion by C. LaMastra, second by C. Kerge that the Consent Agenda be approved. 
 
On a roll call, the vote on the Consent Agenda was recorded as follows: 
 

C. Barzelatto: aye C. LaMastra: aye 
C. Honig: aye C. Lattif: absent 
C. Kerge:  aye    C. Warms:          aye 
     

 
All members present voting in favor, the Consent Agenda was approved. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

 A. Ordinances – None 
  

B. Other 
1. Major Tree Removal/156 Churchill Road 
 

Richard Hubschman, attorney for the applicant, stated that he is appearing on behalf of Mr. Alois 
Rupp who is applying for a tree removal permit for 156 Churchill Road, Block 2102 Lot 13. He 
informed Council that Mr. Alois had met all of the requirements to have said hearing. He 
introduced Bradley Newman of Landscape Concepts located at 777 Franklin Avenue in Franklin 
Lakes. He stated that Mr. Newman is a licensed landscape architect, holds a professional planters 
license, was certified in 1986, and his certification is held in good standing. He submitted Mr. 
Newman as an expert in landscape architecture. 
 
Mr. Newman explained that the old structure had been removed and the site is fairly level 
providing a nice level platform for the new structure. However, the site then drops off and the 
applicant is asking to remove some of the existing trees. He stated that they are looking to 
remove approximately 37 trees. In addition to replacing the trees being removed to meet the 
requirements for mitigation, Mr. Newman explained that they are looking to create a series of 
gardens, plant a lawn and construct a pool terrace to allow access to the backyard. He further 
stated that they are working on a final landscape plan that will include stabilization and slope 
planting with shrubs, plants, and small trees. Mr. Hubschman asked whether the applicant has 
fully complied with the requirements of the ordinance and Mr. Newman responded that they 
have. Council questioned Mr. Newman as to the grade changes across the property and expressed 
their concerns about whether drainage would be affected. Mr. Newman explained that the 
building and terrace are designed to catch water. He also stated that with the proper planting, the 
runoff will be properly handled. C. Honig expressed his concern over the removal of the root 
systems. Mr. Newman responded that there is a drain at the bottom of the site plan and Mr. 
Hubschman added that it is a seepage pit designed to collect the runoff.  
 
Mayor Rustin opened the public hearing.  
 
Ellen Gursky, 166 Churchill Road, explained that she is the uphill next door neighbor to Mr. 
Rupp. She questioned the number of trees being removed and how it was decided how many 
trees would be planted to replace the trees being removed. Mr. Newman explained that they 
followed the requirements of the ordinance. She asked the size of the largest tree being removed 
and Mr. Newman reported that it was a 33 inch white oak. She also asked how many years it is 
expected to take for the new trees to reach their maturity in terms of width, height, and girth. Mr. 
Newman responded 50 to 70 years.  
 
Greg Eagan, 85 Mayflower Drive, stated that he lives directly behind Mr. Rupp’s property. He 
explained that he already experiences drainage issues from Ms. Gursky’s property and believes 
this construction will cause even more water problems on his property. C. Honig added that with 
the construction of the pool and clearing of trees, the ground surface would be disturbed and may 



 

 3 

damage the root systems of other trees. Mr. Newman responded that they are working on an 
additional plan to be submitted that will show limited disturbance. He stated that they will have 
tree protectors, staked out and fenced, and the situation will be closely monitored. He explained 
that there would be a critical root zone that would start beyond the root line and would prevent 
soil from migrating into the area. 
 
Steve Gursky, 166 Churchill, pointed out how many more 30 inch trees were being removed than 
left alone. 
 
Mr. Hubschman submitted that his client is attempting to comply with the ordinance. Borough 
Attorney McClure advised that there are two circumstances which warrant a tree removal 
hearing. One circumstance is the applicant asking for relief from the requirements as there is not 
enough room to plant the required number of trees or the cost of replacing the trees is too high. 
The other circumstance, which is the case with this application, is the applicant is proposing to 
comply with the ordinance. The purpose of said hearing is simply to provide notice to 
neighboring properties of the major tree removal; Council does not approve or disapprove the 
application. Mayor Rustin stated that because of the size of the property, the applicant is able to 
plant the required number of trees, there are no steep slope issues, and drainage concerns had 
been addressed. 
 
Mayor Rustin asked Joe Thiel, Field Engineer from Schwanewede & Hals, to provide his 
comments. He stated that he has visited the property with David Hals, Borough Engineer. He 
advised that the location of the pool had been adjusted from the original plans and this change 
along with preventing development to the property line, would allow for proper drainage. He 
advised that there are eight seepage pits that would allow for collection of runoff from front to 
back. C. Warms questioned whether the amount of trees proposed to be replaced met the 
requirements of the mitigation plan. Mr. Thiel advised that Bob Beutel intends to meet with the 
architect to ensure that there are significant shade trees included in the final plan. Council 
continued to raise concerns about the drainage issues and Mr. Thiel and Mr. Newman assured 
them that the proper planting and number of seepage pits will allow for proper drainage. 
 
Borough Attorney again advised that Council would only be voting on whether the applicant has 
complied with the requirements of the ordinance. All members voting in favor, Council 
determined that the applicant had complied with the requirements of this ordinance. Mayor 
Rustin requested that this part of the process be reviewed. He asked that this item be listed on an 
agenda and that Bob Beutel be asked to comment on how to make this process work better. 

  
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Councilwoman Kerge Ms. Kerge reported that both the Board of 

Adjustment and Historic Preservation met this 
week, but she was unable to attend due to Budget 
Meetings. She advised that the Board of Adjustment 
is still discussing the cell tower applications and the 
requested housing on Dean Drive. 

 
Councilwoman LaMastra Ms. LaMastra announced that the BID interviewed 

over a dozen candidates for the Director position 
and offered the position to Paula Cozzarelli. Her 
start date is scheduled for March 21st. She advised 
that it is the intent of the BID to have Ms. 
Cozzarelli reach out to every business within the 
BID and have her meet with the Mayor and 
Council, Board of Adjustment, Planning Board, 
Borough Administrator, Building Department, and 
Assessor. 

 
Mayor Rustin Mayor Rustin reported that he attended a JIF 

breakfast this morning. Tenafly was one of six 
towns recognized for the gold level of employee 
safety and received a monetary reward for this 
recognition. He acknowledged Carol Byrne for her 
efforts in helping the departments implement our 
safety procedures. 



 

 4 

 
Councilman Warms Mr. Warms announced that the Nature Center 

celebrated its 50th Anniversary Gala Dinner on 
Sunday at the Clinton Inn. He reported that the 
dinner was sold out and it was a very successful 
fundraiser. 

 
 Mr. Warms reported that the Chamber of 

Commerce changed their meetings, on a trial basis, 
to Tuesday nights.  

 
Councilman Barzelatto Mr. Barzelatto reported that Emergency 

Management has been in contact with FEMA and 
will meet on Friday to finalize the paperwork for 
the December 26th storm.  

 
Councilman Honig Mr. Honig reported that he had attended the Tenafly 

Education 5K Kickoff. He commended Judy and 
Mark Aronson for the tremendous job that they did 
with this event. As the Police overtime results in a 
$2,000 fee for this event, Mr. Honig was asked if 
the Police would consider donating their services. 
The TEF proposed offering the PBA a table, 
signage, or public recognition for their services. Mr. 
Honig asked how the TEF should go about making 
this request. Mayor Rustin responded that they 
should write a letter to the Mayor and Council 
requesting approval for the event, police presence, 
and assistance from the PBA for funding this 
presence. 

 
Councilwoman LaMastra Ms. LaMastra advised that she had attended the 

Joint-Use Committee and they had discussed shared 
services such as attendance, human resources 
program, custodial services, plumbing and electrical 
services, ground upkeep, and the use of Channel 77. 
In terms of the ability to broadcast, she advised that 
two sets of equipment would need to be obtained as 
the Board of Education meetings take place at the 
same time. Ms. LaMastra also reported that the 
Board of Education reaffirmed their support for the 
sidewalk on Downey Drive. 

 
OLD BUSINESS  

A. Report on Correspondence Re: 12 Mayflower Drive 
 
Borough Attorney McClure advised that the alleged violations at 12 Mayflower Drive are the 
only issues that should be discussed; the issues pertaining to application before the Planning 
Board are not in the purview of the governing body. The two issues of concern to the governing 
body are the electrical safety violation and the extension of the burm into the Borough Right-of-
Way. Borough Attorney McClure recommended having the appropriate Borough Officials look 
into these issues to determine whether they pose a safety hazard. Council decided that a report on 
safety violations at 12 Mayflower Drive will be discussed at the March 22nd Work Session. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

A. #R11-122/Amend Temporary Budget 
 
Motion by C. LaMastra, second by C. Warms that #R11-122/Amend Temporary Budget be 
approved. 

 
On a roll call, the vote was recorded as follows: 

 
C. Barzelatto: aye C. LaMastra: aye 
C. Honig: aye C. Lattif: absent 
C. Kerge:  aye    C. Warms:          aye 



 

 5 

 
B. #R11-123/Appoint Labor Council 
 

Motion by C. LaMastra, second by C. Barzelatto that #R11-123/Appoint Labor Counsel be 
approved: 
 
WHEREAS, Mayor and Council have resolved to award a one-year contract for the 
position of Labor Counsel through a non-competitive process pursuant to N.J.S.A. 
19:44A-20.5; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Borough’s Chief Financial Officer has determined and certified in 
writing that the value of the Labor Counsel’s contract for 2011 will exceed $17,500; and 

 
WHEREAS, the firm of Ruderman & Glickman, P.C. has submitted a proposal, and has 
completed and submitted a Business Entity Disclosure Certification which certifies that 
the said firm and its principals have not made any contributions to any political or 
candidate committee in the Borough of Tenafly in the previous one year that would 
render the firm ineligible to be awarded a contract to serve as Labor Counsel; and  

 
WHEREAS the proposed contract will prohibit Ruderman & Glickman, P.C. and its 
principals from making such reportable contributions through the term of the contract. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Ruderman & Glickman, P.C. is hereby 
appointed by the Governing Body to  serve as Labor Counsel for the Borough of Tenafly 
until December 31, 2011 subject to the following: 
 

1. Certification of funds by the Chief Financial Officer of the Borough of Tenafly; 
and 

 
2. Receipt of an acceptable form of professional services contract, the terms of 

which shall be reviewed by the Borough Attorney and Borough Administrator, 
and which shall be subject to final approval of the Governing Body; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Business Entity Disclosure Certification and the 
Determination of Value be placed on file with this Resolution. 
 
C. Honig expressed his opinion that Mr. Ruderman is a qualified attorney but feels as though the 
other candidate was equally as qualified. Based upon the fact that the other attorney’s cost was 
$50 less per hour, he does not believe it would be fiscally prudent to pay the additional money 
and will be voting no. 
 
C. LaMastra explained that the Labor Counsel Sub-Committee came to the governing body with 
two candidates, both of whom were interviewed by the entire governing body. She stated that it 
was a difficult decision, but her decision was based upon skill. She also believes that although 
Mr. Ruderman’s cost per hour is slightly higher, he may be able to perform the job faster. 
 
C. Kerge expressed her opinion that both candidates were very impressive and she had voted for 
the other candidate based upon cost. She stated that she would have liked more time to make the 
decision and to have had a full Council. Since the majority voted to proceed, she stated that she 
would be supporting this candidate. 
 
On a roll call, the vote was recorded as follows: 
 
 C. Barzelatto:  aye   C. LaMastra:   aye 
 C. Honig:  nay   C. Lattif   absent 
 C. Kerge:  aye   C. Warms:   aye 
 

 
AUDIENCE REMARKS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Schowl Hedvat, 28 Elkwood Terrace, stated that he put forth many allegations in his complaint 
that have nothing to do with his Planning Board application and does not believe that his 
application should prevent discussion. He expressed his disappointment that he would have to 
wait another week to get a report from the departments involved. 
 



 

 6 

Sara Levinson & Emily Chang, Smith School H.S.A. Co-Presidents, 101 Downey Drive, asked 
the governing body to support the installation of the sidewalk on Downey Drive as they believe it 
is the beginning of the solution to addressing the safety of children. C. Honig asked whether their 
request would have been a sidewalk to Thatcher or Engle. Ms. Levinson responded that whether 
to install a sidewalk to Engle is not her decision to make. C. Barzelatto informed Ms. Levinson 
and Ms. Chang that the sidewalk installation has already been authorized, the funds are 
budgeted, and the Council is going forward with the project. 
 
Jeff Thompson, 41 Lawrence Parkway, stated that over nine months ago, he had submitted 
documentation that his neighbor had cut down trees without mitigation. He has provided 
documentation from an arborist that the trees were not diseased. He explained that he had 
contacted the Building Department and met with the Administrator, but no one has gotten back 
to him. Borough Administrator Thompson-Chin responded that she had visited the site with Bob 
Beutel and Mr. Beutel felt that the neighbor had adhered to the ordinance.  
 
MAYOR’S REMARKS 
 
None 
 
CLOSED SESSION  
 
Mayor Rustin recognized Borough Attorney William McClure, who read into the record 
Resolution 11-124 
 
BE IT RESOLVED in compliance with NJSA 10:4-12, the Mayor and Council of the Borough of 
Tenafly are going into Closed Executive Session to discuss the following matters: 
 
 A. Personnel 
  1. Restructuring of the Department of Code Enforcement 
  2. Evaluation of Borough Administrator 
  
 B. Professional Contracts/Attorney-Client Privilege 
  1. Labor Counsel  - Discussion on Interviews 

  
Minutes will be taken of the meeting and release to the public at the time that the matter is 
resolved. After Closed Executive Session, the Mayor and Council will reconvene in the Richard 
D. Wilson Committee Room to adjourn this public meeting. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, on a motion from C. Kerge, second 
by C. LaMastra, and all present voting in favor, the meeting was at 10:33 p.m.  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Jewel Thompson-Chin 
Acting Borough Clerk 


